
	

__________________________________________________________________________ 
763-479-0527 (Phone)                               1920 County Road 90                                   763-479-0528 (Fax) 

Independence, MN 55359 
http://independence.govoffice.com 

	

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 
TUESDAY, JANUARY 24, 2017 
 
*****NOTE: PLANNING COMMISSION INTERVIEWS: 6:15 PM***** 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING TIME: 7:30 PM 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll Call 

 
4. ****Consent Agenda**** 

 
All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted 
on by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

a. Approval of City Council minutes from the January 10, 2016 Regular City Council 
Meeting. 

b. Approval of Accounts Payable; Checks Numbered 16838-16873.  For Information 
Checks Numbered 16829-16837 and 16874-16878	are Payroll Checks. 

c. Approve E-Charging Joint Powers Agreement and Court Services Amendment 
Renewal. 

i. RESOLUTION 17-0124-01 Approving the Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) 
with the State of Minnesota, Department of Public Safety and Bureau of 
Criminal Apprehension to utilize systems, tools and data made available by 
the State and BCA. 

d. Approval of Liquor License Renewals for Windsong Golf Club, Pioneer Creek Golf 
and the Ox Yoke Inn. 
 

5. Set Agenda – Anyone Not on the Agenda can be Placed Under Open/Misc.  
 

6. Reports of Boards and Committees by Council and Staff. 
 
7. Annual City Council Visit by District 33 State Senator David Osmek. 

 



 

8. Director Gary Kroells, West Hennepin Public Safety - Activity Report for the Month of 
December, 2016. 

 
9. Dean Voss (Applicant) and Linda Nelson (Owner) request that the City consider the 

following actions for the property located at 4586 Shady Beach Circle, Independence, MN 
(PID No. 02-118-24-21-0007): 

 
a. RESOLUTION 17-0124-02 Considering a variance to allow a reduced front yard 

setback for the purpose of constructing a garage addition.  
 
9. Open/Misc. 

 
10. Adjourn. 

 
	
 



 

1 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
7:30 p.m., January 10, 2017 
 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
INDEPENDENCE CITY COUNCIL  

TUESDAY, JANUARY 10, 2017 –7:30 P.M. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER. 
 
Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the Independence City Council was called to 
order by Mayor Johnson at 7:30 p.m. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 
 
Mayor Johnson led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3.  ROLL CALL  
 
PRESENT: Mayor Johnson, Councilors Betts, Spencer, McCoy and Grotting  
ABSENT: None 
STAFF: City Planner & City Administrator Mark Kaltsas, City Administrative Assistant Horner, City 

Attorney Vose 
VISITORS: Jeff Johnson, Four Boy Scouts 
 
4.  ****Consent Agenda**** 

 
All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted on by one 
motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be 
removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

a. Approval of the City Council minutes from the December 13, 2016 Truth in Taxation Meeting. 
b. Approval of City Council minutes from the December 13, 2016 Regular City Council Meeting. 
c. Approval of Accounts Payable; Checks Numbered 16792-16828.  For Information Checks 

Numbered 16765-16791 are Payroll Checks. 
d. Approval of Mayors Attendance at the National League of Cities Congressional Cities Conference 

March 11-15 and the National Community Action Legislative Conference on March 15-17. 
e. Approval to not waive the monetary limits on Tort Liability established by MN Statues, to the 

extent of the limits of liability coverage obtained from the LMCIT. 
f. Approve date of Local Board of Appeal and Equalization Meeting-April 11, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. 
g. Approve Annual Payment to WeCAN and Delano Senior Center for Services Provided to 

Independence Residents.  
h. RESOLUTION 17-0110-01 Supporting the WeCAN Community Development Block Grant 

(CDBG) Application. 
i. Letter of Support for Senior Community Services Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

Application. 
j. Approval of Planning Commission Appointment of Thomas Palmquist to a Three (3) Year Term. 
k. RESOLUTION 17-0110-02 Approving Residential Recycling Grant Agreement with Hennepin 

County. 
l. Approve Agriculture Preserve Enrollment Application for the Property Located at 7275 Turner 

Road and Further Identified by PID Nos. 2811824410005, 2811824410005 and 2811824440004. 
m. Approval of Third Quarter Financial Report 



 

2 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
7:30 p.m., January 10, 2017 
 

Motion by McCoy, second by Spencer to approve the Consent Agenda. Ayes: Johnson, Betts, Spencer, 
McCoy and Grotting. Nays: None. Absent: None. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 
 
5. SET AGENDA – ANYONE NOT ON THE AGENDA CAN BE PLACED UNDER OPEN/MISC.  

 
6. REPORTS OF BOARDS AND COMMITTEES BY COUNCIL AND STAFF 
 
Spencer attended the following meetings: 

 City Council Workshop 
 Highway 12 Safety Coalition Meeting 

 
Grotting attended the following meetings: 

 None to report 
 
McCoy (report for April 12th and April 26th) attended the following meetings: 

 Highway 12 Safety Coalition Meeting 
 City Council Workshop 
 Northwest League of Cities Meeting 
 Maple Plain Mayors Recognition Reception 
 Retirement Reception for Tom Stinger, Orono School Business Manager 

 
Betts attended the following meetings: 

 Police Commission Meeting 
 City Council Workshop 
 Highway 12 Coalition Meeting 
 West Hennepin Chamber of Commerce Meeting 

 
Johnson attended the following meetings: 

 Northwest League of Municipalities Meeting 
 Retirement Reception for Tom Stinger, Orono School Business Manager 
 Suburban Hennepin County Community Action Partnership Finance Committee Meeting 
 Highway 55 Quarter Coalition Meeting 
 Police Commission Meeting 
 City Council Workshop 
 Governors Holiday Reception 
 Jerome Hanson funeral 
 Conference of Mayors 
 Orono Choir Concert 
 West Hennepin Chamber of Commerce Meeting 

 
Horner attended the following meetings: 

 City Council Workshop 
 
Kaltsas attended the following meetings: 

 City Council Workshop 
 
 

 



 

3 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
7:30 p.m., January 10, 2017 
 

7. ANNUAL CITY COUNCIL VISIT BY DISTRICT 7 HENNEPIN COUNTY COMMISSIONER JEFF 
JOHNSON. 

 
Johnson handed out the 2016 budget numbers. He said mostly the budget will remain the same for 2017 with 
the exception of property taxes which increased 5%. Johnson said he feels there is spending where there does 
not need to be and that there could be more effective ways of spending the budget dollars. He said the 
increases are not sustainable year after year especially looking at the demographics. Johnson noted they are 
looking at the way they do business with vendors and having more performance-based pay. He said they are 
also looking at changing over from a step model for paying employees to a performance driven model. 
Johnson said they are also working on the comprehensive plan and implementing some reform to that model 
as well. 
 
Mayor Johnson said he would like to see the County take a look at the election ballot counter. He noted it was 
so slow there were lines of voters waiting to cast their ballot. Mayor Johnson also expressed concern 
regarding the SCORE funding that comes from the County with the contract reducing funding for regular 
recycling programs and increasing funding for the organic program. 
 
Betts said she really liked the video Commissioner Johnson put on Facebook about Met Council.  
 
Spencer thanked Commissioner Johnson for his involvement in the Highway 12 Coalition meetings and his 
attentiveness to that issue. 

 
8. ANNUAL CITY COUNCIL APPOINTMENTS 

 
Kaltsas said each year the City selects Council Members, consultants and staff to serve the City and fill roles 
supporting boards and commissions.  The Council has the discretion to make appointments as necessary.  The 
various positions are identified on the attached schedule.  Staff is seeking Council direction relating to all 
official City Council appointments. 
 
Spencer stated he spoke with Joe Baker and he is willing to stay on as the City’s representative to the 
watershed district. Johnson and Spencer both said Joe has done a wonderful job and his efforts are much 
appreciated. 
 
Spencer said he would be the Planning Commission’s primary liaison to the City Council and Grotting could 
serve as his back-up. 
 
McCoy stated he would continue to be the representative for the City with Delano and Loretto fire 
departments. Betts said her schedule could stay the same as well. Grotting was fine with staying on as the 
cable representative. 
 
Acting Mayor Councilor Brad Spencer 

Assessor Hennepin County, Melissa Potter 

Weed Inspector PW Director Larry Ende 

Assn. of Metro Municipalities Mayor Johnson 

Attorney, Civil Kennedy & Graven 

Attorney, Criminal Carson & Clelland 

Auditor Clifton Larson Allen 



 

4 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
7:30 p.m., January 10, 2017 
 

Civil Defense Director WHPS Director Gary Kroells 

Dog Pound Crossroads Animal Shelter 

Engineer MSA Professional Services, Brian Miller/Steve Winter 

Fire Department Advisory Boards 
 - Maple Plain FD 

 
Mayor Johnson, Councilor Betts, City Admin Kaltsas 

 - Delano FD Mayor Johnson, Councilor McCoy, City Admin 
Kaltsas 

 - Loretto FD Mayor Johnson, Councilor McCoy, City Admin 
Kaltsas 

Fire Marshall Building Official Bruce Satek 

Hennepin County Recycling Comm Admin Asst Beth Horner 

Highway 55 Coalition Mayor Johnson 

Highway 12 Coalition Mayor Johnson, Councilor Betts 

HRA Mayor Johnson, Councilors Betts, Spencer, McCoy and 
Grotting 

Lake Minnetonka Cable Commission Councilor Grotting 

Minnehaha Watershed Mayor Johnson 

Newspaper Crow River News (Official Newspaper), Pioneer, and 
Delano Herald 

Northwest Hennepin League Mayor Johnson, Councilors Betts, Spencer, McCoy, 
Grotting and City Admin Kaltsas 

Official Depository Bank of Maple Plain, Northland Securities, Ehlers & 
Assoc., League of MN Cities 

Pioneer Sarah Watershed Joe Baker, Alt. Brad Spencer 

Planner Terramark - Mark Kaltsas 

Planning Commission Liaison Councilor Spencer, Grotting as back-up 

Public Works Road Liaison  Councilor Spencer 

Water Resource Staff Hakanson/Anderson – Kaci Fisher, Shane Nelson and 
Craig Jochum 

West Hennepin Police Commission Mayor Johnson, Councilor Betts 

 
Motion by Grotting, second by McCoy to approve the City Council Appointments for 2017. Ayes: 
Johnson, Betts, Spencer, McCoy and Grotting. Nays: None. Absent: None. MOTION DECLARED 
CARRIED. 

 
9. OPEN/MISC. 

 
Kaltsas addressed the Council about the financial status of the City recapping the third quarter. Kaltsas said 
the City is in good financial shape and will be within budget. He noted the solid waste budget is off but that 
will be trued up in 2017. Kaltsas said the building inspectors hours have been moved from Public Works back 
to inspector category.  
 



 Page 1 

 

City of Independence 

Approval of Electronic Charging Joint Powers Agreement and 
 Court Services Amendment Renewal Agreement 

 

To: City Council  

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 

Meeting Date: January 24, 2017 

 
 
Discussion: 
Five years a joint initiative was launched with the State, Bureau of Criminal Apprehension, local 
law enforcement agencies and the prosecuting attorneys to establish a system for electronic 
charging for criminal prosecuting.   The maximum term of the JPA and Court Services 
Agreement is five years.  The City is now required to enter into a new JPA and Court Services 
Renewal Agreement.   
 
The City utilizes the services of Carson, Clelland and Schreder for criminal prosecution.  Their 
office has prepared a memorandum further explaining how this aids the City along with the 
resolution authorizing the Mayor and Administrator to execute both the Joint Powers Agreement 
and Court Services Amendment Renewal Agreement on behalf of the City.   
 
Recommendation: 
The City Council is being asked to approve the following: 

1. RESOLUTION 17-0124-01 approving the joint powers agreements with the State of 
Minnesota. 

Attachments:  Memorandum from Carson, Clelland and Schreder 
RESOLUTION 17-0124-01 

  Master JPA Agreement 
  Court Services Amendment Agreement 
 
   
    
 





	

__________________________________________________________________________ 
763-479-0527 (Phone)                               1920 County Road 90                                   763-479-0528 (Fax) 

Independence, MN 55359 
http://independence.govoffice.com 

	

					
RESOLUTION	NO.	17‐0124‐01	

	
RESOLUTION	APPROVING	STATE	OF	MINNESOTA	JOINT	POWERS	AGREEMENTS	WITH	THE	CITY	OF	

INDEPENDENCE	ON	BEHALF	OF	ITS	CITY	ATTORNEY	AND	POLICE	DEPARTMENT	
	

WHEREAS,	the	City	of	Independence	on	behalf	of	its	Prosecuting	Attorney	and	Police	Department	
desires	to	enter	into	Joint	Powers	Agreements	with	the	State	of	Minnesota,	Department	of	Public	Safety,	
Bureau	of	Criminal	Apprehension	to	use	systems	and	tools	available	over	the	State’s	criminal	justice	data	
communications	network	for	which	the	City	is	eligible.		The	Joint	Powers	Agreements	further	provide	the	City	
with	the	ability	to	add,	modify	and	delete	connectivity,	systems	and	tools	over	the	five	year	life	of	the	
agreement	and	obligates	the	City	to	pay	the	costs	for	the	network	connection.	
	
NOW,	THEREFORE,	BE	IT	RESOLVED	by	the	City	Council	of	Independence,	Minnesota	as	follows:	
	
1.	That	the	State	of	Minnesota	Joint	Powers	Agreements	by	and	between	the	State	of	Minnesota	acting	
through	its	Department	of	Public	Safety,	Bureau	of	Criminal	Apprehension	and	the	City	of	Independence	on	
behalf	of	its	Prosecuting	Attorney	and	Police	Department,	are	hereby	approved.			
	
2.	That	the	Police	Chief,	Gary	Kroells,	or	his	successor,	is	designated	the	Authorized	Representative	for	the	
Police	Department.		The	Authorized	Representative	is	also	authorized	to	sign	any	subsequent	amendment	or	
agreement	that	may	be	required	by	the	State	of	Minnesota	to	maintain	the	City’s	connection	to	the	systems	
and	tools	offered	by	the	State.	
	
3.	That	the	Prosecuting	Attorney,	John	Thames,	or	his	successor,	is	designated	the	Authorized	Representative	
for	the	Prosecuting	Attorney.		The	Authorized	Representative	is	also	authorized	to	sign	any	subsequent	
amendment	or	agreement	that	may	be	required	by	the	State	of	Minnesota	to	maintain	the	City’s	connection	to	
the	systems	and	tools	offered	by	the	State.	
	
4.		That	Marvin	Johnson,	the	Mayor	for	the	City	of	Independence,	and	Mark	Kaltsas,	the	City	Administrator,	
are	authorized	to	sign	the	State	of	Minnesota	Joint	Powers	Agreements.	
	
Passed	and	Adopted	by	the	Council	on	this	_____	day	of	_________,	______.	
	
CITY	OF	INDEPENDENCE	
	
	
	
_________________________________	
By:		Marvin	Johnson	
Its	Mayor	
	
	
	
ATTEST:____________________________________	
By:		Mark	Kaltsas	
Its	City	Administrator	



































 Page 1 

 

City of Independence 

Approval of Annual Certification of On Sale, Off Sale and 3.2% and 
 Sunday Liquor License Renewals  

 

To: City Council  

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 

Meeting Date: January 24, 2017 

 
 
Discussion: 
Three establishments have historically been granted liquor licenses by the City of Independence.  
The liquor license renewals are typically considered annually by the City.  West Hennepin Public 
Safety performs a background check on the establishments prior to approval. The liquor licenses 
considered for each establishment are as follows: 
 

1. Ox Yoke Inn:   On-sale 
    Sunday  
    3.2% 
    Off-sale 
 

2. Windosng Golf Club:  On-sale 
    Sunday  
    3.2% 

 
3. Pioneer Creek Golf  On-sale 

    Sunday  
    3.2% 
 

 
Recommendation: 
The City Council is being asked to approve the certification for the liquor licenses subject to the 
successful background check by West Hennepin Public Safety. 

 
 
Attachments:  Applications for Liquor Licenses   
   
    
 





















4586	Shady	Beach	Variance	Request	–	City	Council																																																																																																																						1.24.2017		
	 Page	1	

 

City of Independence 

Request for a Variance from the Front Yard Setback for the  
Property Located at 4586 Shady Beach Circle 

 

To: City Council  

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Planner 

Meeting Date: January 24, 2017 

Applicant: Dean Voss 

Owner: Linda Nelson 

Location: 4586 Shady Beach Circle 

 
 
Request: 
Dean Voss (Applicant) and Linda Nelson (Owner) request that the City consider the following action for the 
property located at 4586 Shady Beach Circle (PID No.02-118-24-21-0007):  
 

a. A variance to allow a reduced front yard setback which would permit a home/garage addition.   
 
 
Property/Site Information: 
The subject property is located at 4586 Shady Beach Circle.  The property is a legal non-conforming 
property that does not meet all of the current lot and setback requirements.  There is an existing home and 
two small sheds on the subject property.   
 

Property Information: 4586 Shady Beach Circle 
 Zoning: Rural Residential (Shoreland Overlay) 
 Comprehensive Plan: Rural Residential 
 Acreage: 0.34 acres (14,812 square feet) 

Impervious Surface Maximum: 25% (3,703 square feet) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 



4586	Shady	Beach	Variance	Request	–	City	Council																																																																																																																						1.24.2017		
	 Page	2	

 

4586 Shady Beach Circle (blue line) 

 
 

 
Discussion: 
The applicant is seeking approval to construct an addition onto the existing home.  The addition would 
include living space and a new garage.  The applicant is proposing to meet applicable side yard setbacks, 
but would like to encroach into the required front yard setback.  The proposed encroachment would require 
the City to grant a 17 foot variance to allow a front yard setback of 13 feet rather than the required 30 feet. 
 
The subject property is a legal non-conforming lot of record.  The City’s current lot standards require a 
minimum of 1 acre for all properties in the Shoreland Overlay zoning district.  The subject property is .34 
acres in size.  The existing home does not have a garage.  There are two small sheds located on the 
property.  The City has historically considered variances for properties in the Shoreland Overlay district that 
are substandard lots of record.  The City allows already allows a considerable amount of relief from the 
requisite standards by ordinance.  The City allows all requisite setbacks to by reduced by 40% for 
substandard lots of record.  In this particular situation, the existing lot could accommodate an approximately 
22 foot wide expansion without a variance.  This width would be the minimum width of a typical two car 
garage.   
 



4586	Shady	Beach	Variance	Request	–	City	Council																																																																																																																						1.24.2017		
	 Page	3	

 

  
 
The subject property is considered a substandard lot of record in accordance with the City’s Shoreland 
Ordinance Section 505.15. 
 

505.15. Substandard lots. Lots of record in the office of the county register of deeds or registrar of 
titles prior to December 1, 1982, which do not meet the requirements of this section 505, may be 
allowed as building sites provided:  

  
(a) such use is permitted in the zoning district;  

PROPOSED 13’‐ SETBACK

REQUIRED SETBACK IS 30’

PROPOSED ADDITION 
 



4586	Shady	Beach	Variance	Request	–	City	Council																																																																																																																						1.24.2017		
	 Page	4	

 

  
(b) the lot of record is in separate ownership from abutting lands, and can meet or exceed  
60% of the lot area and setback requirements of this section; and  

  
(c) all requirements of section 705 of this code regarding individual sewage treatment  
systems are complied with. 

 
Setbacks for properties located in the shoreland ordinance are as follows: 
 

 
 
Front Yard Setback:  

Required: 85 feet from centerline or 50 feet from the ROW (@ 60% = 30 feet from right of way) 
Proposed: 13 feet from the right of way 
 

Side Yard Setback (as it relates to proposed addition): 
 Required: 30 feet (@ 60% = 18 feet) 
 Provided (West): 18’ 
 
In addition to the setback requirements, properties located in the shoreland district can have a maximum 
impervious surface coverage of 25%.  This property would be permitted to have a maximum impervious 
surface coverage of 3,703 square feet.  The applicant has prepared an analysis of the impervious surface 
area for this property.  The existing and proposed impervious surface calculations are as follows: 
 



4586	Shady	Beach	Variance	Request	–	City	Council																																																																																																																						1.24.2017		
	 Page	5	

 

  
 
The applicant is proposing to remove two existing sheds, a concrete patio area and the existing gravel 
driveway to reduce the impervious surface coverage area of the property (see diagram below). 
 

 
 
 



4586	Shady	Beach	Variance	Request	–	City	Council																																																																																																																						1.24.2017		
	 Page	6	

 

The applicant is also proposing to construct a pervious paver driveway to access the garage addition.  The 
City has not counted pervious pavers towards the total impervious surface area.  With the proposed 
garage/house addition, the property would have a total impervious surface equaling 24.9% of the lot area.   
 
There are several factors to consider relating to granting a variance.  The City’s ordinance has established 
criteria for consideration in granting a variance.   
 
520.21. Standards for granting variances. Subdivision1. The City Council may grant a variance from the 
terms of this zoning code, including restrictions placed on nonconformities, in cases where: 1) the variance 
is in harmony with the general purposes and intent of this zoning code; 2) the variance is consistent with 
the comprehensive plan; and 3) the applicant establishes that there are practical difficulties in complying 
with the zoning code (Amended, Ord. 2011-08)  

 
Subd. 2. An applicant for a variance must demonstrate that there are practical difficulties in  
complying with the zoning code. For such purposes, “practical difficulties” means:  

 
(a) The property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not 

permitted by the zoning code;  
 

(b) the plight of the property owner is due to circumstances unique to the property not 
created by the landowner;  

 
(c) the variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.  

 
Economic considerations alone do not constitute practical difficulties. Practical difficulties include, but are 
not limited to, inadequate access to direct sunlight for solar energy systems. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08)  
 
Subd. 3. The City Council shall not grant a variance to permit a use that is not allowed under the  
zoning code based on the zoning classification of the affected property. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08)  
 
520.23. Conditions and restrictions. The board of adjustments may recommend and the City Council may 
impose conditions on a variance. Conditions must be directly related to and must bear a rough 
proportionality to the impact created by the variance. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08)  
 
Consideration of the criteria for granting a variance: 

a. Residential use of the property is consistent with the Rural Residential District.  The applicants are 
seeking a variance that is generally consistent with similar variances granted for properties in this 
area.  
 

b. Each property in this area is non-conforming and typically requires relief from certain setbacks.  
The City will need to determine if the requested variance is unique to this property. 

 
c. The character of the surrounding area is residential.  The proposed single family home is in 

keeping with the City’s comprehensive plan. 
 



4586	Shady	Beach	Variance	Request	–	City	Council																																																																																																																						1.24.2017		
	 Page	7	

 

There are several additional items that could be considered by the City: 

1. Many of the surrounding properties have been granted relief from the requisite setback 
requirements due to the small size of the properties, unique lot layouts resulting from the historic 
nature of the structures on the properties and the change in nature of the homes from seasonal to 
permanent. 

2. From the image below it can be seen that several properties in this neighborhood have reduced 
front yard setbacks.  The setbacks range from approximately 10 feet to 20 feet from the right of 
way/property line.  The applicant is seeking a 13 foot setback.   

3. The requested variance would allow a standard size two garage to be located on the property.  
From the plans provided, it appears that the depth of the garage could be reduced to 
accommodate a greater setback from the right of way.   

4. Due to the location of the property at the end of a cul-de-sac and its orientation on the curve of the 
road, the apparent impact on the “streetscape” will be somewhat minimized.   

Ultimately the City will need to find that the aforementioned criteria for granting a variance have been met 
by the applicant.     



4586	Shady	Beach	Variance	Request	–	City	Council																																																																																																																						1.24.2017		
	 Page	8	

 

 
 
Public Comments: 
The City has not received any comments prior to the writing of this report or at the public hearing. 
 
 
Planning Commission Discussion/Recommendation: 
Planning Commissioners discussed the proposed variance and asked questions of staff and the applicant.  
Commissioners asked the applicant if the proposed permeable pavers are intended to extend all the way to the 
edge of Shady Beach Circle and not just to the edge of the right of way.  The applicant responded that the 
permeable pavers will extend all the way to the edge of the existing pavement.  Commissioners asked what the 
setback is from the edge of the pavement to the proposed garage.  Staff noted that the distance from the proposed 
structure to the edge of the pavement is 32 feet.  Commissioners discussed/asked if there were any other 
possibilities for increasing the setback of the proposed garage.  Ultimately commissioners thought that the 
requested variance was in keeping with the character of the surrounding properties and would not pose a potential 
impact.  Commissioners recommended approval of the variance as requested with the addition of a condition 
specifying the extents of the permeable paver area.   
 



4586	Shady	Beach	Variance	Request	–	City	Council																																																																																																																						1.24.2017		
	 Page	9	

 

Recommendation: 
The Planning Commission recommended approval of the requested variance with the following findings and 
conditions:   
 

1. The proposed Variance request meets all applicable conditions and restrictions stated in Chapter V, 
Section 520.19, Procedures on variances, in the City of Independence Zoning Ordinance. 

 
2. The 17-foot variance will allow a reduced front yard setback of 13 feet.  The variance will allow the 

proposed one story structure as depicted on the approved site plan attached as Exhibit A to the 
resolution. 

 
3. The total impervious surface coverage for this property will not exceed 25% of the total lot area.  The 

applicant shall submit a detail of the proposed pervious paver driveway to the City for review and 
approval at the time an application for a building permit is submitted.  The entire proposed driveway 
shall be installed with permeable pavers (from the edge of the pavement on Shady Beach Circle to 
the garage).  

 
4. The applicant shall submit a drainage plan to the City at the time of building permit application.  The 

drainage plan will be reviewed by the City to ensure that the proposed improvements do not 
adversely impact any of the surrounding properties relating to grading and drainage. 

 
5. The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the requested variance. 

 
6. Any future improvements made to this property will need to be in compliance with all applicable 

standards relating to the Rural Residential and Shoreland Overlay zoning districts.  No expansion of 
the home/ garage or impervious areas will be permitted without an additional variance request.   

 
 
Attachments: 

1. RESOLUTION 17-0124-02 
2. Application 
3. Site Plan  
 
 
 

 



 

RESOLUTION NO. 17-0124-02 

 
A RESOLUTION GRANTING APPROVAL OF A VARIANCE TO ALLOW A 17 FOOT 
REDUCTION IN THE PERMITTED FRONT YARD SETBACK FOR THE PROPERTY 

LOCATED AT 4586 SHADY BEACH CIRCLE 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Independence (the “City) is a municipal corporation under the laws 
of Minnesota; and 

WHEREAS, the City adopted a comprehensive plan in 2010 to guide the development of 
the community; and  

WHEREAS, the City has adopted a zoning ordinance and other official controls to assist in 
implementing the comprehensive plan; and  

WHEREAS, Linda Nelson (the “Owner”) submitted a request for a variance to allow a 
reduced front yard setback which would permit a home/garage addition for the property located at 
4586 Shady Beach Circle (PID No. 02-118-24-21-0007) (the “Property”); and  

WHEREAS, the Property is zoned Rural Residential; and 

WHEREAS, the Property is legally described as shown and depicted on Exhibit A attached 
hereto. 

WHEREAS the requested Variance meets all requirements, standards and specifications of 
the City of Independence zoning ordinance for Rural Residential lots; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission held a public hearing on January 17, 2017 to review 
the application for a Variance, following mailed and published noticed as required by law; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed all materials submitted by the Applicant; 
considered the oral and written testimony offered by the applicant and all interested parties; and has 
now concluded that the application is in compliance with all applicable standards and can be 
considered for approval. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA, that it should and hereby does approve the application by Linda 



Nelson and grants a Variance for the property in accordance with the City’s zoning regulations 
with the following findings and conditions: 

 
1. The proposed Variance request meets all applicable conditions and restrictions stated in 

Chapter V, Section 520.19, Procedures on variances, in the City of Independence 
Zoning Ordinance. 

 
2. The applicants are proposing to use the property in a manner consistent with the Rural 

Residential District.  The applicants have attempted to locate the building to meet all 
other applicable setbacks for property zoned Rural Residential and under the Shoreland 
Overlay District.   

 
3. The character of the surrounding area is residential.  The proposed expansion of the 

home and garage is generally in keeping with the City’s comprehensive plan. 
 

4. The 17-foot variance will allow a reduced front yard setback of 13 feet.  The variance 
will allow the proposed one story structure as depicted on the approved site plan 
attached as Exhibit A to the resolution. 

 
5. The total impervious surface coverage for this property will not exceed 25% of the total 

lot area.  The applicant shall submit a detail of the proposed pervious paver driveway to 
the City for review and approval at the time an application for a building permit is 
submitted.  The entire proposed driveway shall be installed with permeable pavers 
(from the edge of the pavement on Shady Beach Circle to the garage).  

 
6. The applicant shall submit a drainage plan to the City at the time of building permit 

application.  The drainage plan will be reviewed by the City to ensure that the proposed 
improvements do not adversely impact any of the surrounding properties relating to 
grading and drainage. 

 
7. The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the requested 

variance. 
 

8. Any future improvements made to this property will need to be in compliance with all 
applicable standards relating to the Rural Residential and Shoreland Overlay zoning 
districts.  No expansion of the home/ garage or impervious areas will be permitted 
without an additional variance request.   

 
This resolution was adopted by the city council of the City of Independence on this 24th day of 
January, 2017, by a vote of __ ayes and ___ nays.       
  

______________________________ 
       Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 __________________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
 

(SEAL) 










